

Australian Native Orchid Society - Macarthur Group

SEPTEMBER 2016

Edited by Tony Asquith mail: aaasquith@bigpond.com. Phone 4625 9874

A P

President: Mr. W. Southwell (Ph. 46818589) Postal Address: - 8A Boundary Road,

Secretary: Mr. J. English (Ph.86262934) PARRAMATTA. 2150

Treasurer: Mrs. C. Asquith (Ph. 46259874) Next Meeting: THURSDAY, 15th September, 2016

Life Member: Mr. J. Riley, M. T. Cooke.

Conservation Officer: R. Hanman ANOS Macathur Group disclaims any responsibility for any

losses which may be attributed to the use or misuse of any materials published in this newsletter

Venue: BIRRAWA HALL

FITZPATRICK ROAD

Mt. ANNAN. Doors open 7.15pm, benching closes 7.30pm, meeting starts 7.30pm

Hi to All

A big Thank You to Alan Stephenson for his presentation of some of the orchids in Western Australia. Congratulations for plant of the night to Peter Wise and popular choice to Noel Bates.

The Spring Show at Rosemeadow Shopping Centre on the 24th September. Bring along any sales plants that you have. Set up at 8am.

Margaret and I thank the committee and membership for the honour of life membership.

Peter Wise will be speaking on a variety of topics at our next meeting. **Membership fees are now overdue.**

Wally

* ... 10th A ... 2016

Meeting 18th August, 2016

Meeting opened at 7.50pm.

Apologies Terry Cooks Jar

Apologies Terry Cooke, Ian Lawson, John Riley and Phil Griffith Minutes from previous meeting as published in the newsletter.

Moved Richard Hanman Second Kim Hines

Correspondence Newsletters from other Societies.

Treasurers Report Presented to meeting

Moved Carol Asquith seconded Graham Morrison

General Business

President Wal welcomed our visitors Alan Stevenson, Barry Bush and Michael.

Southern Highland Show 1st September

Table Covers are ready, thanks Greg. Our Show 24th September at Rosemeadow

Victoria ANOS has asked for seed of Thelymitra, Diuris and Pterostylis from ANOS Members.

Margaret moved "to sell excess library books" at shows.

Ross Morrison presented Life Membership Badges to Wally and Margaret Southwell for many years of Tireless work.

Raffle (not my Spelling) Julia, Julia, Greg Steenbeeke, Don Roberts.

Next Meeting: 20th October, 2016.

Meeting closed about 9.30pm.

Dates to Remember

24th September 2016 Macarthur ANOS Spring Show Rosemeadow Shopping Centre

7 – 9 October 2016 Southern Orchid Spectacular - Caringbah High School,8 Willaroy Road, Caringbah

Australian Native Orchids

Orchids are the largest and most successful plant group on earth. Estimates of their numbers range from 20 000 to more than 35 000 in 750-850 genera. These numbers mean that nearly 10% of the world's flowering plants are orchids.

TERRESTRIAL

Habitats:

Terrestrial orchids in Australia reach their optimum development in the sclerophyll forests of the south. Here the open forests and woodlands in some areas may be carpeted with an array of interesting and colorful forms, especially noticeable in the spring when the majority of species flower. Certain species favour particular niches within the forest, thus some are colonisers of the slopes and ridges whereas others are found predominately in sheltered gullies and along watercourses, often in quite shady locations.

Terrestrial orchids are often common in coastal districts. Coastal forests eg Melaluca forests, stabilised coastal dunes and heathlands are suitable habitats and may support a wide diversity of types. Soils are usually sandy, although peaty barns may predominate in some areas. Coastal swamps often contain interesting species. In such habitats, water is present in winter and spring and the orchid plants can be partially submerged.

Terrestrial orchids decrease in abundance with increasing distance from the coast. Suitable inland habitats include mallee communities. sandhills and sandplain vegetation (especially in Western Australia). Some grow along the snow line areas of some high ranges.

THE STRUCTURE OF TERRESTRIAL ORCHIDS Roots:

Roots of terrestrial orchids are generally fleshy and very brittle. Perennials such as Calanthe and Phaius produce a mass of thick roots, whereas most deciduous terrestrial have a few, short roots which are often irregularly shaped.

Storage Roots:

The roots of many deciduous terrestrial orchids form fleshy organs for storage or resting purposes. Commonly known as tubers, these structures are correctly termed tuberoids, because they are formed on roots and not stems on which true tubers arise. Such structures are very common in Australian terrestrials and they allow the orchids to survive (by avoidance), the extremes of dryness and heat which occur in late spring and summer. Tuberoids contain an apical bud and new roots are produced from the base as it elongates into a new stem. Some species produce a single tuberoid each year which replaces the parent tuberoid. This is known as a replacement tuberoid and it is usually produced at the end of a short root termed a dropper or sinker. Those terrestrials which grow in colonies can produce more than one tuberoid annually, each at the end of a long, fleshy root. Thus these species increase in numbers by vegetative means and the extra tuberoids are termed daughter tuberoids. A few terrestrials such as species of Spiranthes and Cryptostylis, have swollen fleshy roots that can act as storage organs.

Leaf Shape:

Leaf shapes encountered in Australian terrestrial orchids include linear (Diuns sp.), cylindrical (Thelmitra), cordate (Acianthus exertus), lobed (Acianthus arnplexi caulisdiuris), some are hollow (Microtis and Prasophyllum).Brassavola Cucullata Leaf Thickness, Vestiture and Colouration:

Many terrestrial orchids have leaves which are very thin-textured (Corybas, Peristylus), whereas others are fleshy (Calochilus robertsonii), or tough and leathery (Cryptostylis subulata). Most are smooth but a few are hairy or have unusual bristle like structures (Caladenia gemmata). In the majority the colouration of both surfaces is similar but in a few terrestrials the under surface of the leaf can be purplish (Acianthus exsertus) or appear as if frosted (Corybas). Many species which grow in very shaded habitats have thin textured, pleated leaves (Calanthe triplicata).

Leaf Arrangements:

The leaves of deciduous terrestrial orchids are mainly basal and may be solitary (Acianthus, Thelymitra), in pairs (Chiloglottis), or form a spreading rosette (Pterostylis). Some groups have leaves scattered up the stem in a loose spiral (Habenaria, Spiranthes); others are arranged along the stems in two alternate rows. This later arrangement is termed distichous and is exemplified in Pterostylis longifolia.

Inflorescence:

The point where the inflorescence arises is of interest. In deciduous terrestrials the inflorescence

is terminal on the stem, whereas in many of the evergreen types such as Calanthe triplicata and Phaius tankevilleae, the inflorescence arises from a nearly basal node. Many native orchids have one-flowered inflorescences (Chiloglottis, Corybas, Pterostylis). Flower arrangements on an inflorescence can be spiral (Spiranthes sinensis), alternately in two ranks.

Effects of Fire:

Fire is a major environmental factor in Australia and the most important habitats for terrestrial orchids are burnt regularly. Members of the Australian flora, including some orchids, have developed remarkable adaptations to cope with fire. Many terrestrial orchids not only survive summer bushfires but have become so adapted to their occurrence, that they have become an integral part of their life cycle. Thus a number of species require fire to induce flowering (that is they will only flower after fires) and many other species flower much more profusely in the season following a burn.

About sixteen species of Australian terrestrial orchids are dependent on the stimulus provided by a summer fire before they will flower. Clearly such orchids have evolved during the long history of burning. It is interesting to note that fifteen of the sixteen fire dependent species occur naturally in south-western Western Australia, thirteen of these being endemic to this region. In eastern Australia there are only three species which can be said to be fire dependent and only one of these is endemic to the region.

Terrestrials dependent/stimulated by fire. Caladenia, Diuris, Chiloglottis. Corybas, Lyperanthus Aficrotis, Prasophyllum, Glossodia, Thelyrnitra.

VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION

Terrestrial:

Many terrestrial orchids which grow in colonies increase by producing more than one new tuberoid each season. Thus the colonies increase in size and spread into new territory. The extra daughter tuberoids are produced at the end of long, stolon-like roots and are of similar shape and size to the parent tuberoid. By this technique some terrestrial orchids can increase two to four fold in numbers each year. Species which exhibit this type of vegetative reproduction can be found in the genera Actanthus, Corybas, Pterostylis, Lyperanthus to name a few.

Terrestrial orchids are much less commonly grown than other epiphytes, and the Australian deciduous species are more challenging than most. The fact that they may often require specialised treatment, and that some species may be below the ground for long periods limits their appeal to the general grower of orchids. Other types of terrestrial orchids, such as Calanthe triplicata and Phaius tankervilleae, are not so difficult to grow and plants can often be found in mixed collections.

Growth Cycle:

The successful cultivation of deciduous terrestrial orchids relies heavily on an understanding of their growth cycle, which is strongly seasonal. The plants survive the hot, dry summer conditions as dormant tuberoids. These sprout after the advent of good, soaking rains. Most species are dormant over summer and come into active growth after late summer and autumn rains (February-March).

When the shoots from the previously dormant tuberoids reach the surface, they develop into a leaf or rosette characteristic of the species. Some species flower directly from the tubers and the leaves emerge later, whereas in others the leaves are born along the flower stem. Some species of Pterostylis have a leafy rosette which is a separate juvenile plant, revoluta, grandiflora. or is attached to the base of the flowering scape, parvilora, many others form a rosette first and later an inflorescence develops from the centre, nutans. Most of the spring flowering orchids have a fully developed leaves before the flower emerges.

Pot culture:

The majority of terrestrial orchids are grown in pots as they need specialised treatment and protection from pests and diseases.

Potting Mix:

Deciduous terrestrial orchids require a soil-based mixture for their growth. A suitable soil mix must be very freely draining and should include sand and an organic component. Organic material is an important addition to the potting mix because it provides a substrate for the mycorrhizal fungi. It also increases the water-holding capacity and nutrition of the mix. Two different types of organic material are used together in a potting mix for terrestrial orchids.

They are leaf mould and wood shavings, peat moss may also be used as a complete mix.

Suitable Potting Mix:

A suitable potting mix for deciduous terrestrial can be made by combining the components in the following proportions:

	Mix 1	Mix 2
soil	1 part	1 part
coarse sand	2 parts	3 parts
leaf mould	1 part	1 part
shavings	1 part	2 parts

These are good basic mixes and both are suitable for most terrestrial species. Variations can be made by increasing or decreasing the proportions of the materials or by changing the type of components. For example, some orchids prefer heavier soils whereas others grow best in light sandy loams. Mixes can be opened up by using coarse sand, or by increasing the proportion shavings or leaf mould. Fresh leaf mould as obtained from the ground surface under suitable trees is coarse; however, the lower layers have broken down humus. This decomposed leaf mould is excellent for growth in the short term; however, for lasting effects a proportion of coarse litter should be included.

Fertilizers:

We have seen that most terrestrial orchids rely heavily on a mycorrhizal fungus for their survival. This relationship can be readily upset by the excessive use of fertilizers and hence fertilizing of terrestrial orchids must be carried out with care. A small quantity of blood and bone (one dessert spoon per bucket or 10 grams per 9 litres of mix) added to the mix can be beneficial. One or two annual applications of half strength liquid fertilizers can also be of benefit to some species.

PESTS AND DISEASES

Pests:

Terrestrial are particularly vulnerable to attack and a large snail can do a lot of damage overnight. Damaged areas become slimy from the exudation of sap and can provide an entry point for diseases. Where the surface tissue is grazed, the damaged areas are at first pale green and then become papery and die.

Caterpillar and Grubs:

The most persistent caterpillar to feed on orchids is undoubtedly that of the Light Brown Apple Moth or Leaf Roller. These fleshy, green or pinkish grubs grow to about 10 millimetres long and form crude shelters by joining leaves together. Cut worms and loopers are can also get very active. (I use Grubkill, and I spray the total area at first sign).

Spider Mites:

These tiny eight-legged animals are a common and serious pest to orchids, especially terrestrials. Spider mites feed by sucking the sap and usually congregate in colonies on the underside of leaves. (I use Hortico Red Spider miticide and to help prevent further attack Divstien).

DISEASES

Mediocalcar Root Rot:

Terrestrial orchids can suffer from a fungi, which can become active if the potting mix is incorrect (especially if drainage is inadequate) or if over watered or grown in to much shade. Afflicted plants develop a watery brown rot which spreads quickly and causes death. Control is to identify and correct the problem; that is improving factors such as drainage and air movement, reducing watering and protecting plants from heavy rain and drips.

Grey Mould:

This common fungus attacks damaged leaf tissue in still, humid conditions. Grey mould can attack terrestrial, usually entering tissue damaged by heavy watering, rain splash or drips.

Leaf Spots and Rots:

Various fungi attack the leaves of orchids causing spots, blotches and sometimes rots. Leaf rot can be a major problem of terrestrial orchids especially in tropical and subtropical regions. It is worse on plants grown in the open and often follows damage caused by heavy rain.

Rusts:

Certain terrestrial orchids are susceptible to leaf rusts. These develop on the leaves as orange, powdery pustules and frequently cause distortion and curling. The disease is spread by rustcoloured spores and usually persists through successive generations of orchids. Although a fairly minor disease, rust has been noted in species of Chiloglottis, Diuris, Microtis. Control can be difficult and most growers destroy affected plants.

These notes have been used at our Cultural and New Grower's Meetings. They are from various sources and we thank the authors. All articles are supplied in good faith and the Bribie Island Orchid Society and its members will not be held responsible for any loss or damage.

Editors Note: Without a doubt, the website of Bribie Island Orchid Society is well worth a visit, especially if you are seeking cultural information. It is beautifully presented, with high quality information for cultivating orchids and thankfully, available to struggling editors to publish articles from their website.

And a little extra for email people

Be Water Wise

Whether we like it or not, Australia is in dire straits with its water supplies. As a result of prolonged periods of drought, many water collection areas, including the underground aquifer, have not received sufficient run-off for replenishment. But we, as a nation, have kept using water with gay abandon. We are one of the highest users of water per capita of any nation. Now the rooster has come home to roost.

We have to take action to conserve our dwindling resources.

I have given the matter some thought & asked some friends from around Australia for their ideas on how to save water in caring for their orchids, & looked at some of the web sites advising tips to help mend our wicked ways.

- I guess the first & probably the most obvious, yet most ignored, is the dripping tap. Leaking taps, pipes & dishwasher hoses is an easy way to reduce water wastage. One leaking tap can waste more than 2000 litres per month. (Source: Sydney Water Board)
- Installing water efficient taps or aerators is a great, inexpensive way to cut your water usage without you even noticing.
- Mulch your garden beds to retain moisture & lessen evaporation. Turning to more orchidspecific matters, here are some tips collected from around Australia.
- I found the use of sphagnum moss as a potting mix can help to increase the time required between watering orchids. Phalaenopsis especially love it. I found that they could be watered here at weekly intervals except in the heat of summer. On warm days I mist them in the morning. They do need repotting annually but their large thick roots make this easy as pie. I also found that small to medium size Vandas & Ascocendas do well with a layer of sphagnum moss in the bottom of the pot. Sphagnum is not recommended for orchids with fine roots as these are too easy damaged when repotting.
- For conserving water, one possible way is to use water-absorbing crystals in the orchid mixture I think they are called Absorber Crystals. They hold the water & then release it slowly as the mixture dries.
- Use a wetting agent for all watering. This ensures that the water used 'sticks' to in the pot & onto the plant & root system thus saving a lot of water & also allowing greater periods between watering.
- After the plants have been watered, plastic under the benches could collect the run off & run it into drums. Filter it & reuse it.
- Obviously any rain water that falls on the roofs of your house, orchid houses, or any other sheds needs to be collected & stored in tanks. Remember the old days when every house had a tank? If so, your age is showing! A friend installed a 4500 litre water tank at the beginning of 2003 purely for watering his orchids.
- Multiple small tanks of collected rain water can be connected together to maintain even levels in each tank. Add a small pressure pump to service foggers, air conditioners & for watering by hand. These small tanks can be hidden behind the garage, garden shed, orchid house, etc.
- I feel some growers will need to look at what orchids they purchase & their water requirements. Many growers have a tendency to water more frequently than is necessary. The time of day plants are watered is also a factor. Many orchids can do with less water than is currently applied, Australian native Dendrobiums & their hybrids included. Hot/cold hybrids with greater than 25% Den. Bigibbum influence do not need large amounts of water, as per the needs of the major parent. It may also be necessary to put pots in trays that contain water & leave the rest to capillary action.
- The ongoing water situation eventually will prove to be too much if we don't act now. I

visualize some growers giving up because of the cost & unavailability of water. Reuse of water will need to be investigated but this is something difficult on a small grower-to-grower scale.

- Orchid growers, & particularly the professionals, will need to put their case to the relevant governments to initiate an investigation into reuse of grey water & also reclaimed sewage water.
- Another friend has installed 3 rain water tanks to collect water from the roof. For Adelaide's poor water quality, he finds it important to have rain water for the Phalaenopsis, etc. Also he has his misters on a timer to try to conserve water& to apply it only when necessary.
- I think that if you choose a potting medium with the materials like moss, peat, vermiculite & perlite, these hold more water in the mix & you don't have to water as often.
- No magic tricks for a friend in Sydney. What he has done over the last few seasons is simply reduce watering to harden his plants by watering less & less often, hand water using a watering can where necessary.

So there are a few views to get you thinking. For more information on water saving ideas in the home & garden, I recommend you go the Queensland Government Website http://www.water.qld.gov.au/water/index.shtm...... or for interstate information try local websites such as Sydney Water Board's website http://www.sydneywater.com.au/SavingWater/ by Colin Hamilton

These notes have been used at our Cultural and New Grower's Meetings. They are from various sources and we thank the authors. All articles are supplied in good faith and the Bribie Island Orchid Society and its members will not be held responsible for any loss or damage.

Benching Results August Meeting 2016

Dendrobium Species	Den. tetragonum	W. & M. Southwell
	Den. Tetragonum	M. Warner
Dendrobium Hybrid	Den. Aree Crimson	M. Warner
	Den. Crackerjack	J. English
Sarcanthinae Species	nil	
Sarcanthinae Hybrid	nil	
Bulbophyllum	B. Schillerianum	R. Morrison
	B. tiepherdii	R. Morrison
Aust. Species Other	nil	
Aust. Rhizobium	D. teretifolium	Noel Bates
	D. teretifolium	R. Morrison
Terrestrial Pterostylis	P. curta	R. Morrison
	P. concinna	T. Cooke
Terrestrial Evergreen	nil	
Dockrillia		nil
Terrestrial Hybrid	P. baptistii x P. falcata	W. & M. Southwell
	P. nodding grace	W. & M. Southwell
Terrestrial Other	chilo. Truncate	W. & M. Southwell
	Glossodia major	R. Morrison
Caladenia Species	C. Catenata	Terry Cooke
	Ph. Diformus	T. Cooke
Diuris Species	D. Maculate	R. Morrison
	D. pardina	R. Morrison
Australasian Species	nil	
Australasian Hybrid	Den. Tweetie x teretifolium	M. Yabsley
	Den. Twechas x delicohyllum	R. Morrison
Novelty Class	Cym. Ruby Perdant	D. Roberts
Seedling First Flowering	nil	
	Growing Competition 1.	A. & C. Asquith
	Growing Competition 1.	R. Morrison
	Growing Competition 2.	A. & C. Asquith
		W. & M. Southwell

Plant of the night w	as D. Cobber'Mrs. Ple	ase grown by Pater Wi	ise and
Popular Choice was	Dockrillia teretifolia	grown by Noel Bates	Congratulations

Don't forget the show at Rosemeadow....so clean up your plants and bring them along. Also, if you have a few plants too many, bring them along and sell them at the show. The commission also supports our society and assists with the financial well being of Macarthur ANOS Group.

See you there!! GOOD GROWING